
 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    1                                            September 20, 2016 
 

FRUITA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 

 
1.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
The Invocation was given and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
2.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Council members present were Bruce Bonar, Dave Karisny, Kyle Harvey, Ken Kreie, Joel Kincaid 
and Louis Brackett.  Mayor Buck was excused absent, so Mayor Pro Tem Bruce Bonar presided 
over the meeting, which he called to order at 7:00 p.m.  He noted that both the Mayor and the City 
Manager (Mike Bennett) were out of town representing Fruita at the Interbike Trade Show in Las 
Vegas. 
 
3.  AGENDA – ADOPT/AMEND 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Bonar asked if there were any corrections or additions to the agenda.  City 
Clerk/Finance Director Margaret Sell noted that for Public Hearing Item 7.A (Robinson Rental 
Conditional Use Permit request), the applicant had withdrawn their application, so it needed to be 
pulled from the agenda.   
 

• COUNCILOR KINCAID MOVED TO REMOVE THE PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 
7.A FROM THE AGENDA.   COUNCILOR KREIE SECONDED THE MOTION.  
THE MOTION PASSED WITH SIX YES VOTES. 

 
• COUNCILOR KINCAID MOVED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS AMENDED.   

COUNCILOR KARISNY SECONDED THE MOTION.  THE MOTION PASSED 
WITH SIX YES VOTES. 

 
4. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
There were no Proclamations or Presentations on the agenda.  
 
5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Denise Hoctor stated that she lives at 1332 Niblick Way in the Adobe Falls Subdivision.  Judy 
Thornburg stated that she lives at 1354 Niblick Way.   
 
Mrs. Hoctor said that she and Ms. Thornburg were present to talk about a situation involving the 
Robinson Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application for a Vacation Rental by Owner (VRBO).  She 
stated that they didn’t feel like the City’s process for a CUP for a VRBO was working and they felt 
responsible to bring it to the attention of the City Council and request consideration of some 
changes to the process. 
 



 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    2                                            September 20, 2016 
 
Mrs. Hoctor continued that when she received her postcard informing the neighborhood of the CUP 
request, she talked to the Community Development Department about what it meant.  She said that 
during this time, the Robinsons were still renting their house before the CUP was approved. 
 
Mrs. Hoctor said that the process that is currently in place is to let the applicant continue renting 
because the City does not have enough manpower or time to enforce them to stop.  She said in the 
meantime, the neighborhood became very tense. 
 
Mrs. Hoctor said that she moved into Adobe Falls because of the kind of tight community that it is, 
but when the VRBO started, people in the neighborhood took sides and it brought a lot of 
negativity.   
 
Mrs. Hoctor suggested that prior to the City accepting the $150 CUP permit fee and application, 
City staff should check with the HOA president to see if vacation rentals are allowed in the 
covenants or not if the subject property is in an HOA-controlled subdivision.  She added that this 
would save so much in the whole process because her subdivision went through postponements and 
it really changed their lives not in a good way.  Mrs. Hoctor stated that the neighborhood has lots of 
healing to do because of the CUP request. 
 
Mrs. Hoctor continued that she doesn’t feel like it’s okay for the Robinsons to keep renting the 
house when the CUP has not been approved yet.  She noted that the house is listed on the Airbnb 
website and the homeowners are collecting money.  Mrs. Hoctor said she feels this loophole is 
something that probably shouldn’t be allowed because it is against the law. 
 
Ms. Thornburg said she wanted the City Council to know that prior to the CUP request, the people 
in the neighborhood were all getting along so well and that the CUP process just shouldn’t have 
happened the way it did where people are taking sides, being upset and feeling lied to.  She said 
there has to be something that could be done so that neighborhoods don’t get into a tiff and 
relationships don’t get broken.  She also requested that City staff make sure (before someone puts 
out money for a CUP), whether a vacation rental has a likelihood to be approved or not.   
 
Hearing no further comments, from the public, Mayor Pro Tem Bonar closed the Public 
Participation section of the agenda. 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES – A REQUEST TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  

B. COPIER CONTRACT – A REQUEST TO APPROVE A CONTRACT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF FRUITA AND CAPITAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC. FOR A 
COPIER AT THE FRUITA POLICE DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZE THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT  
                                                                                                                    

C. AUGUST 2016 FINANCIAL REPORTS – A REQUEST TO APPROVE THE 
AUGUST 2016 FINANCIAL REPORTS  



 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    3                                            September 20, 2016 
 

D. ORDINANCE 2016-13 – SECOND READING – A REQUEST TO APPROVE AN 
ORDINANCE TO QUIT CLAIM A 20-FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND 
LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF PROPERTY ADDRESSED AS 241 S. 
SYCAMORE STREET TO THE CURRENT PROPERTY OWNERS IN 
EXCHANGE FOR A PRIVATE UTILITY AGREEMENT 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Bonar opened the public hearing on the Consent Agenda.  Hearing no comments 
from the public, he referred back to the City Council. 
 

• COUNCILOR KINCAID MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA AS 
PRESENTED.  COUNCILOR KARISNY SECONDED THE MOTION.  THE 
MOTION PASSED WITH SIX YES VOTES.  

 
7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
There were no public hearing items on the agenda. 
 
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 
   
There were no administrative items on the agenda.  
   
9.   COUNCIL REPORTS AND ACTIONS 
 

A. COUNCIL REPORTS AND ACTIONS  
 
COUNCILOR BRACKETT 
 
Councilor Brackett stated that he already gave the Council a report (at the last Council meeting) 
about the last Parks and Recreation Advisory Board meeting and that the next Parks and Recreation 
Board meeting would be held the first week in October.  
 
Councilor Brackett also stated that he would be attending the Police Commission meeting the 
following evening and they have a full agenda.  He added as a side note that City staff is currently 
interviewing Police Officer applicants (both POST certified and not) and he had been asked to serve 
on one of the upcoming interview panels in October.  
 
COUNCILOR KINCAID 
 
Councilor Kincaid reported that the previous week, he attended the Chamber of Commerce Board 
meeting.  He announced the following events and highlights: 
 

• The Chamber will be hosting a Candidate Forum in the Council Chambers on October 6, 
2016 (Councilor Kincaid said he thought it was at 7:00 pm, but he would confirm that with 
Council members later)  
 



 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    4                                            September 20, 2016 
 

• The Chamber is planning a President’s Partner Dinner for the first or second week in 
November and they want the Mayor and all Council members to attend.  They are trying to 
get together some of the bigger Chamber sponsors and get some feedback from them and the 
Council on the community.  It is also a “thank you” dinner for those sponsors. 
 

• The Chamber had all positive feedback on the Farmers’ Market for this year even with the 
change in how booth spaces were assigned and placed on the grass. 
 

• The Chamber discussed the Co-Op grain elevator and wants to know if the City is doing 
anything with it.  Councilor Kincaid said that he advised the Chamber that the City really 
doesn’t have an economical solution at this point, but that Human Resources Director Odette 
Brach is still looking into other options. 
 

• The Southside Marketplace (south Fruita) would like to have year-round lights installed on 
the south side like downtown Fruita has.  He asked Parks and Recreation Director Ture 
Nycum (present at the Council meeting) what would have to be done to accomplish that. 

 
Mr. Nycum responded that the Parks Department puts up the lights around the community, but they 
have not yet taken into account adding lights to the south side this year.  He added that this would 
take a significant amount of man hours to install the lights and the City doesn’t have enough lights 
on hand because there has been no final direction on how the Council wants to proceed with the 
matter. 
 
Councilor Kincaid stated that south Fruita is interested in getting the lights, so he thought it was 
something that the City should plan on.  He noted that they will be having events such as the Shop 
Small promotion on Black Saturday, a Trick or Treat Street promotion and a Chocolate Walk in 
December. 
 
Councilor Kincaid also reported that the Tourism Advisory Council would be meeting later in the 
week.   
 
Councilor Kincaid requested that an item be placed on the September workshop session for the 
Council to discuss the usage of the new logo and different businesses that want to use it.  He noted 
that Aspen Street Coffee has asked if they could use the logo on shirts and someone else had e-
mailed the City Manager requesting to buy some of the banners that have been hung up around 
Fruita. 
 
City Clerk/Finance Director Margaret Sell responded that she had spoken with the City Manager 
about that and they decided that they didn’t have any problem with it.   
 
Councilor Kincaid said it was his opinion that the Council should discuss it so that there would be a 
set policy on its use to avoid any potential negative situations.  He said an example could be that 
there might be someone running a marijuana business that wants to use the new logo, so he felt that 
the Council needed a consensus and a direction before just letting everybody use it. 
 



 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    5                                            September 20, 2016 
 
Councilor Kincaid also reported that he attended the Governor’s Conference the previous week and 
it was a great event that was attended by over 500 people in all different types of positions.  He 
noted that the City of Grand Junction, Palisade and Fruita would be hosting next year’s Governor’s 
Conference in October, so it was good to see how it was run and what they had for seminars.  He 
also said that Colorado is doing a lot of things right in marketing the state’s tourism, but there are a 
lot of things that can be improved upon as well.  Councilor Kincaid said that the Tourism Advisory 
Council would be discussing it to also see how the event can help promote Fruita. 
 
COUNCILOR KREIE 
 
Councilor Kreie stated that the Downtown Advisory Board did not meet in September and that he 
would be unable to attend the Associated Governments of Northwester Colorado’s (AGNC’s) 
Board meeting, but Betsy from Senator Gardner’s office was supposed to let him know if anything 
pertinent to Fruita comes up. 
 
COUNCILOR HARVEY 
 
Councilor Harvey reported that the Arts and Culture Board met the previous Wednesday and is 
continuing to plan and strategize raising funds for public art.  They are looking forward into next 
year when they will again hold the gala “Evening of Art” event to raise money.  The Board thinks 
they may have Councilor Kreie be the Master of Ceremonies (with a possible stand-up routine) at 
the event. 
 
Councilor Harvey also reported that he just attended the Riverfront Commission meeting and Pete 
Fermin (Manager at the James M. Robb-Colorado River State Park) said that their funding has been 
approved to complete the trail through the park; now they just have to put it out to bid.  Mr. Fermin 
also said that the State Park is making an offer on a 5-acre parcel north of the park and is waiting to 
hear back on that.  Councilor Harvey continued that Mr. Fermin stated that the State Park and the 
City of Grand Junction have met to talk about a whitewater park at Connected Lakes, which had 
been discussed before but never really went anywhere.   
 
Councilor Harvey noted that the City should be looking for a letter coming soon from the Riverfront 
Commission advising against all motorized vehicles on the Riverfront Trail including e-bikes.  He 
said the City Council might want to start talking about that in further detail. 
 
Councilor Karisny recalled that when the Governor and some members of the Great Outdoors 
Colorado (GOCO) were here, there was a woman who seemed to be pretty knowledgeable about e-
bikes and it was her impression that they probably at some point would be allowed on the GOCO-
sponsored projects.  
 
Councilor Harvey said it seems like what he has heard about e-bikes versus what the people on the 
Riverfront Commission have heard are two different things.  He added that the Commission is still 
feeling a pretty big influence from GOCO, who is worried about retroactive funding because the 
funds were allocated for non-motorized trails.  Councilor Harvey said he didn’t know the status of 
all of the discussions on the matter, but it was something on which the City Council should figure 



 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    6                                            September 20, 2016 
 
out their position because the Riverfront Commission would be sending the letter to the City of 
Fruita requesting support (of advising against e-bikes on the Riverfront Trail). 
 
COUNCILOR KARISNY 
 
Councilor Karisny noted that in the City Manager’s Weekly Information Update, Mr. Bennett 
updated everyone on what is going on with the Grand Valley Regional Transportation Committee 
(GVRTC) budget process and that it sounds like all of the area municipalities are agreeing to 
provide enough funding for the current level of Grand Valley Transit service this year.   
 
Councilor Karisny continued that on Monday, September 26, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. (in the Multi-
purpose Room of the Mesa County Building) in place of the regular GVRTC meeting, CDOT will 
be holding a regional meeting and Dave Elder is the head of that.  Kathy Hall will likely be there as 
well.  The intent of the meeting is to discuss transportation issues and future projects.  Councilor 
Karisny recalled that in some of those meetings in the past, they are solely CDOT meetings where 
they discuss Region 3 and there will be representation from all over the region.  Councilor Karisny 
said he would be attending the meeting and anyone else could attend if they were interested. 
 
Councilor Karisny stated that the previous week, he and the Mayor were invited to talk with AARP.  
John Rodrick, an AARP representative for the Western Slope and Kathy Laznick (AARP Senior 
Program Specialist) came from Denver to Fruita and are interested in getting as much attention for 
AARP on the Western Slope as the Front Range gets.  They are trying to create an alliance of 
leaders that will give them a sense of what the needs are of Western Slope individuals. 
 
Some of the programs that AARP has are: 
 

• Take a Stand 
• Divided we Fall 
• Mentor Up 
• Staying Sharp 
• Tax Aid  
• Driver Safety 
• Legal Counsel 
• Life Reimage  

 
Councilor Karisny said that the AARP is also talking about something they call the “Moveable 
Middle,” which is the age group between 50 and 65.  AARP is trying to gather information about 
the needs of this age group and how they can fill the gap.  The representatives also talked about 
possibly sponsoring some things and forming partnerships, so they are planning another meeting. 
 
Councilor Karisny also reported that he attended the Entrance Beautification Project meeting.  
There were renderings of what the entrance, bridge over the Interstate and roundabouts could look 
like that were done by Ted Ciavonne, a well-respected local architect.  Councilor Karisny noted that 
this is a first step and there is certainly not a completed product yet.  He asked Mr. Nycum if he had 
anything to add. 
 



 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    7                                            September 20, 2016 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Ture Nycum said that the City’s Engineering Department will be the 
Project Manager for the project.  There were only two people in attendance at the meeting; two 
reporters from local television stations.  Mr. Nycum said they were really hoping a better turnout 
from the community so that the City could get some input.  He added that staff was really hoping to 
be a little further along in some Concept Design, but as of right now, Ted Ciavonne was just 
showing some potential ideas and there is still quite a bit of work to do. 
 
COUNCILOR BONAR 
 
Councilor Bonar reported that the Historic Preservation Board met and Steve Hight has drawn up a 
rough draft of a new map for the Historic Downtown Walking Tour.   
 
Councilor Bonar also noted that the Elevation Outdoors Adventure Town Contest closed at 9:00 am 
the previous day, and as of 8:00 that morning, Fruita had 51.6% and Durango had 48.4%.  He said 
that hopefully Fruita will be the Large Adventure Town winner again this year, but it will take a few 
weeks to find out. 
 
Councilor Bonar also reported that Janet Brazfield was on the Board of Adjustment and she has 
moved outside the City limits and so is no longer eligible to be a member of the board.  This means 
there is a vacancy on the Board of Adjustment and Councilor Bonar asked everyone to let him know 
if they knew of a potential candidate.  He noted that the Board of Adjustment is the only board that 
makes decisions that cannot be revoked by the City Council.  The only way to appeal a Board of 
Adjustment decision is through District Court, so it is a fairly important position and the City needs 
a responsible person to fill the vacancy. 
 

B. EXECUTIVE SESSION – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO 
CONSIDER A MOTION TO CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION TO 
DETERMINE A POSITION RELATIVE TO A MATTER THAT MAY BE 
SUBJECT TO NEGOTIATION UNDER C.R.S. SECTION 24-6-402(4)(E) 

 
• COUNCILOR KINCAID MOVED TO MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR A 

CONFERENCE WITH CITY STAFF FOR THE PURPOSE OF DETERMINING 
A POSITION RELATIVE TO A MATTER THAT MAY BE SUBJECT TO 
NEGOTIATION UNDER C.R.S. SECTION 24-6-402(4)(E).  COUNCILOR 
BRACKETT SECONDED THE MOTION.  THE MOTION PASSED WITH SIX 
YES VOTES.  

 
The City Council convened into Executive Session at 7:27 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 7:42 
p.m. 
 
11. ADJOURN 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 7:46 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 



 
 Fruita City Council Minutes                                    8                                            September 20, 2016 
 
 
 
Debra Woods 
Deputy City Clerk 
City of Fruita 
 


